
Z:\PLANNING\PC 10\11-09-10\minutes 11-09-10.doc - 1 - 

Parkville Special Planning & Zoning Commission 
Tuesday, November 9, 2010, 5:30 p.m. 

City Hall Boardroom 
 

Minutes 
 

ITEM 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
Secretary Cary called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
ITEM 2.  ROLL CALL 
 
Members present: 
Keith Cary                   Bob Lock 
Judy McRuer        Pam Scott  
Tony Tognascioli        
 
Members absent with prior notice:  
Dean Katerndahl        Bryant Lamer 
Marvin Ferguson       Lonnie Scott 
     
Sean Ackerson, AICP, Assistant City Administrator / Community Development Director 
Tracy Sisney, Department Assistant 
 
ITEM 3.  GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

Item 3(A) Approval of Planning & Zoning Meeting Agenda. 

 
Secretary Cary opened the meeting by asking for a motion to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Commissioner Pam Scott moved to approve the agenda as published. Commissioner 
Lock seconded.  Motion passed 5-0. 
 

Item 3(B) Approval of Minutes from the October 12, 2010 Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting. 

 
Secretary Cary called for any changes.  Hearing none he asked for a motion to approve the 
minutes of the October 12, 2010 Planning and Zoning meeting. 
 
Commissioner Tognascioli moved to approve the minutes of the October 12, 2010, 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting as submitted.  Commissioner McRuer 
seconded.  Motion passed 5-0. 
 
ITEM 4. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Item 4(A) Amendment to Parkville Municipal Code Title IV, Chapter 440, "B-4" Planned 
Business District Regulations, Section 440.020, Use Regulations, to allow colleges and 
schools as permitted uses.   Case No. PZ10-19. 

 

 



Z:\PLANNING\PC 10\11-09-10\minutes 11-09-10.doc - 2 - 

Secretary Cary deferred to staff for a report.  Director Ackerson stated that this was an 
amendment to the above referenced code to allow for schools and colleges.  He added that this 
was a result of an application submitted by the Parkville Children’s Cottage Montessori school to 
move from the OTD District to the B-4 District.  Ackerson summarized the purpose of the B-4 
District as a bridge between residential and business and industrial districts.  He referred the 
Commission to several excerpts from the Municipal Code showing that colleges and schools are 
permitted uses in the residential, commercial and industrial districts.  He felt the exclusion in the 
B-4 district was in obvious error. 
 
Ackerson explained that the proposed text amendment was not reviewed in context of the 
Parkville Children’s Cottage application, even thought the amendment stemmed from it.  Rather, 
the text amendment was reviewed based on its merits alone.  If passed, the amendment would 
allow applications for colleges and schools, but would be subject to site plan review and 
approval requiring a case by case evaluation.   
 
Commissioner Scott inquired if this particular site is appropriate for the school, and if there were 
there other existing sites in the B-4 District were this could apply.  Ackerson responded that if 
passed, the use would be allowed in all properties zoned B-4, including properties on Crooked 
Road, 45 Highway, 9 Highway and throughout Parkville.  He pointed out that the use is already 
permitted in the residential, other commercial and industrial districts.  He recommended 
approval as he found no reason not disallow the same use in the B-4 District. 
 
Secretary Cary opened the Public Hearing.  Seeing no one from the public, the Public Hearing 
was closed. 
 
Commissioner Pam Scott moved to approve Item 4 A to allow colleges and Schools as 
permitted uses in the B-4 district.  Commissioner Lock seconded.  Motion passed 5-0 
 
 

Item 4(B) Amendments to Parkville Municipal Code, Title IV, Chapter 483, Changes and 
Amendments, to redefine the authority, procedures, hearing requirements and process, 
review criteria, protests, successive applications, and effective form of amendments to 
the Parkville Zoning Code and official zoning map/zoning district boundaries.  Case No. 
PZ10-16.  

 
Secretary Cary stated that 4 B, C and D are to remain tabled by the City. 
 
 

Item 4(C) Amendments to Parkville Municipal Code, Title IV, Chapter 480, Section 
480.010, to clarify the role and organization of the Board of Adjustment.  Case No. PZ10-
11.  

 
This item was tabled. 
 

Item (D) Amendments to Parkville Municipal Code, Title IV, Chapter 498, to define the 
role, organization, procedures and power of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Case 
No.  PZ10-12.                    

 
This item was tabled. 
 
ITEM 5. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
A.  Project Updates: 



Z:\PLANNING\PC 10\11-09-10\minutes 11-09-10.doc - 3 - 

 
� Items 4 B, C and D (above) – All are still active applications and should be back in front 

of the Commission in December. 
 

� Christian Brothers - Ackerson informed all that the Christian Brothers application for an 
automotive repair shop on 45 Highway is no longer an active application as the company 
is seeking to build their shop elsewhere.  They felt there were too many obstacles on the 
site to overcome. 

 
� National CUP Plan - Ackerson stated that he had spoken with the staff at the National 

Golf Course regarding setbacks for properties abutting the golf course and they were 
open to considering a uniform application procedure.  They did voice some concern that 
reductions may not be applicable in all cases.   

 
Ackerson stated that he had reviewed last month’s application for a reduced rear-yard 
setback as requested.  He found that that proper procedure had been followed and that 
all permits had been properly obtained and payments made and properly accounted for.   

 
Commissioner Pam Scott asked about P&Z jurisdiction over the National’s CUP and if 
P&Z would be able to modify the plan over the wishes of the National.  Ackerson said 
that the application would have to come with the consent of the National.  Commissioner 
Lock enquired as to the Commission’s role in approving an amendment to a previously 
approved CUP.  Ackerson explained that, much similar to other planned districts, 
including the newly created TND zoning, the approved plan is a projection of sorts.  
Planning and Zoning approves the development plan which is effectively a concept plan 
completed in enough detail to ensure it can be built if no changes are ever made.  As the 
project develops, the market changes, and other factors develop, the plan likely 
changes.  Planning and Zoning comes back into the picture routinely to approve any 
major changes to the original plan. 
 
Commissioner Scott asked what happens when the homeowner cannot get approval 
from the over-riding entity.  Ackerson responded that approval must be given from that 
entity.  Commissioner Tognascioli asked what our definition of “at risk” was, especially in 
light of seeing in the provided aerials which show homes that were located on or over 
property lines.  Ackerson said he looked at the aerials as well, specifically in relation to 
two homes referenced in last months meeting.  The homes appeared close to or over 
standard setback lines.  He explained that the building permit for one of the homes 
properly documented calculation of the rear setback based on a proviso in the code that 
looks at irregularly shaped lot sizes and acts accordingly.  Ackerson added some of the 
lot lines on the aerial photos appeared to be off and he was not sure why.   
Commissioner Tognascioli asked if they go back to the National each time for a change.  
Ackerson stated that sometimes that was the case and some come back to Planning 
and Zoning for approval, he added that it was not a predominant factor for us, but it does 
and will happen, mostly on side and rear setbacks. 
 
Commissioner Tognascioli stated that with him being in the business, it looked to him as 
if the builders were doing what they wanted.  Ackerson replied that it might be true in 
some older cases, before anyone in the current staff was employed here.  Commissioner 
Tognascioli added that this was the National’s plan and they need to address it. 

 
Commissioner Scott asked if it could be solved with the permit process.  Ackerson 
replied that amendments to the code or development plan might address properties that 
backed up to open space, but for some other cases, it simply might not work.  He agreed 
to continue to discuss the possibilities with the National.   



Z:\PLANNING\PC 10\11-09-10\minutes 11-09-10.doc - 4 - 

 
� Craig Marshall Dental Building - Ackerson updated the Commission stating that this 

application was still active with building possibly being started this year or early next. 
 
B.  Pending Application Updates: 
 

� Conoco/Magellan - Ackerson stated that we have received two applications from them.  
He reminded the Commission they had previously discussed the potential for an 
application to reuse the above ground fuel storage tanks on 9 Highway.  Staff has met 
with the owners and potential buyers to discuss several times.  They have decided to 
move forward with a proposed amendment to the zoning code to allow above ground 
fuel storage as a conditional use permit. They have also submitted an application for 
conditional use permit, generally defining the limitations on the use and support 
information, like a landscape and screening plan.  Secretary Cary asked when that 
application is likely to come before the Commission.  Ackerson answered that it was 
scheduled to come in December  

 
� CUP Application for Existing Cell Tower - Ackerson stated that another application 

scheduled for the December meeting is a conditional use permit to modify an existing 
cell tower on Kelly Drive in the Bell Road Industrial Park.  He added that they want to 
remove the existing banks of antenna, perform some structural alterations to the tower 
and then put in new antenna. 

 
Ackerson added that besides those applications, we are working on several text amendments to 
the zoning code.  He added that the theme for spring and summer of next year is going to be 
major amendments to the code to clean up some long standing problems.  Discussion ensued. 
 
ITEM 6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
None.   
 
ITEM 7.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Secretary Cary announced upcoming meetings dates as listed on the agenda.  
 
ITEM 8.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Commissioner Pam Scott moved to adjourn.  Commissioner McRuer seconded.  Motion 
to adjourn passed 5-0.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:07 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  ______________________________________  11/10/10_ 
   Tracy Sisney, Department Assistant    Date 
 

Information on these items is maintained at Parkville City Hall and is available for viewing during 
normal office hours.  Planning Commission decisions are recommendations forwarded to the 
Parkville Board of Aldermen meeting unless otherwise noted.  Inquiries on items contained 
herein can be made by visiting Parkville City Hall at 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, or by calling 
the Community Development Department at (816) 741-7676. 


